
1 

 Village of North Bennington  1 
 Development Review Board Meeting  2 

 Tuesday, May 16, 2023  3 
 North Bennington Train Station  4 

 5 
 6 

  7 
DRB Members Present: Chris Damon,(DRB Chair), Tara Lowary, Kim Hall, Hugh Crowl & 8 
James Williams 9 
 10 
Absent: Zoning Administrator, Ron Hachey 11 
*Please see attached letter from Mr. Hachey regarding agenda. 12 
  13 
Others Present:  14 
Jeannie Jenkins, Petitioner, 6 Prospect Street 15 
Gary Corey, Centerline Architect re: 6 Prospect Street 16 
Ryan Gariboldi, Centerline Architect re: 6 Prospect Street 17 
Mary Rogers, North Bennington Planning Commission 18 
 19 
 20 
Recorder: Heather N. Bullock 21 
_______________________________________________________________ 22 
 * Denotes out of order agenda items  23 
 24 
  25 
 1) Call Meeting to Order.  26 
  27 
 Mr. Damon called the meeting to order at 7:00PM.  28 
 29 
 30 
* 3) Review and Approve Previous Meeting Minutes. 31 
  32 
Mr. Damon requested a motion to approve the meeting minutes from the April 18, 2023 DRB 33 
meeting  34 
 35 
Ms. Lowary made a motion to approve the meeting minutes from the April 18, 36 
2023 DRB Meeting.  (Lowary/Crowl/Unanimous)  No further discussion. 37 
 38 
 39 
 40 
 41 



2 

* 2) Query for Public Comment: Revise Agenda if Needed. 1 
  2 
Mr. Damon queried meeting attendees if anyone had any questions or comments and whether 3 
anything on the agenda needed to be amended.  No questions, concerns or revisions were 4 
brought forth. 5 
 6 
4) 6 Prospect Street-Application Seeks Waiver to: 7 
 8 

Section 13.9 iii of the Village Zoning By-Laws requesting a waiver to the 9 
side yard setback requirement for the construction of a roof structure over 10 
an entrance and for a wooden walkway structure connecting this entrance 11 
to the other side entrance into the home. 12 

 13 
Mr. Damon read the above by-law and explained that the purpose of the meeting was to 14 
consider a waiver for a side yard setback to build a roof structure over a walkway between two 15 
exits within a VR20 District. 16 
 17 
Mr. Gariboldi introduced himself and Gary Corey and explained that they work for Centerline 18 
Architects.  Mr. Gariboldi produced a physical poster presentation board to assist with 19 
describing the proposed project at 6 Prospect Street.  He added that they were looking for 20 
approval to add a walkway with a covered roof between two exits on the house with a small 21 
added enclosed area to store ice melt, etc. for walkway maintenance.  He described that they 22 
hope to connect a platform to an existing walk.  He further stated that the area in which they 23 
have to work is quite limited and that the proposed plan comes to a very close point and is more 24 
aesthetically pleasing.  25 
 26 
Mr. Hall queried as to the purpose of the proposed project and Mr. Crowl asked why it was not 27 
accessible. 28 
Mr Corey and Mr. Gariboldi both referred to their architectural plans and stated that the area 29 
was too steep for wheelchair access should someone need to get to the other door. 30 
 31 
Ms. Lowary asked if the second entrance then was being considered for fire egress to which Mr. 32 
Corey confirmed that it was considered for that purpose.  Ms. Lowary asked for details 33 
regarding size to which Mr. Corey explained that it would be a standard minimum dimension of 34 
5 feet x 5 feet and he referred to the physical presentation for further description.  Mr. Crowl 35 
quired as to how far the project would extend outwards and Mr. Corey and Mr. Gariboldi pointed 36 
to the physical presentation to provide more specific details. 37 
 38 
Mr. Damon asked if there were only two entrances to the home to which Mr. Gariboldi replied 39 
that there are three, but that only two are accessible.  Mr. Damon further queried if the deck on 40 
the property was new or a replacement deck to which Mr. Gariboldi replied that it was a 41 
replacement deck. 42 
 43 



3 

Mr. Damon stated that there were 12 ½ feet between the two entrances and an uncovered 1 
walkway.  Mr. Gariboldi added that the distance to the sidewalk is seven feet. 2 
 3 
A continuing discussion ensued regarding the architectural plans and both architects and DRB 4 
board members viewed the physical presentation before then pointing to and discussing various 5 
aspects of the proposal.  Ms. Lowary asked why the pathway needed to be covered to which 6 
Mr. Gariboldi replied that they felt it was appropriate for ease of access for a wheelchair. 7 
 8 
Mr. Damon asked if anyone had any questions regarding the letter and information that had 9 
been distributed by the Village Zoning Administrator, Ron Hatchey.  Ms. Lowary added that the 10 
letter pertains to the roof structure and Mr. Hatchey’s concern regarding the footprint of the 11 
building 12 
 13 
Mr. Damon added that the project would be adding density to an already non-conforming 14 
property.  Ms. Lowary stated that she was unsure if there would be another way to add 15 
accessibility without the addition of a larger footprint on the property.  Mr. Corey stated that the 16 
proposed project added a small percentage to the overall footprint of the buildings. 17 
 18 
Mr. Hall asked for clarification on the allowable building area for the site to which Mr. Damon 19 
replied that the setbacks are quite severe.  Mr. Gariboldi explained that the rules were different 20 
for this project.  Mr. Damon added that anything proposed would only increase the already 21 
existing non-conformance of the property. 22 
 23 
Mr. Williams asked how the existing structure had been built in the first place to which Mr. Hall 24 
replied that the structure was “grand-fathered” as it was built before the bylaws were written. 25 
Mr. Williams further queried if the door going to the deck was an option.  Mr. Gariboldi stated 26 
that Mr. Hatchey had advised them that if they had considered that entrance that it would have 27 
been approved, but that it would not work for wheelchair accessibility. 28 
 29 
Mr. Williams asked for confirmation that what they were looking at for consideration was both 30 
the connector walkway and the roof.  Mr. Crowl clarified for Mr. Williams.  Mr. Hall stated that it 31 
was appropriate to consider two fire exits. 32 
 33 
Ms. Lowary asked if anyone else wanted to offer more evidence regarding the proposal and 34 
asked if Ms. Jenkins would like to contribute any additional information to which she said she 35 
did not. 36 
 37 
Mr. Damon stated that he appreciated the presentation and time of Mr. Gariboldi and Mr. Corey.  38 
He added that he would entertain a motion to conclude the current discussion and enter into a 39 
deliberative session. 40 
 41 
Mr. Hall made a motion to enter into deliberative session. 42 
(Hall/Williams/Unanimous)    43 
 44 



4 

Mr. Damon explained that the DRB was allowed 45 days to make their decision but that it 1 
generally was issued much faster than that. 2 
 3 
DRB entered into deliberative session at 7:18PM. 4 
No further discussion. 5 
 6 
____________________________________________________________________ 7 
 8 
 9 
Deliberative Session Results. 10 
 11 
 12 
The Development Review Board approves the application subject to the following 13 
additional conditions: 14 

1.       None 15 

After a discussion, a motion was made to approve the application, as proposed, 16 
for a waiver under Bylaw Section 13.9 to the applicant for a building permit 17 
submitted by Jeannie Jenkins for construction of a roof structure over an 18 
entrance with a small enclosed exterior storage closet and for a wooden walkway 19 
structure connecting this entrance to the other side entrance into the home. 20 

 21 
 22 
 23 

 24 



I 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

VILLAGE OF NORTH BENNINGTON - DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD 

The Development Review Board will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, May 16, 
2023 at 7:00 PM at the Village Depot Meeting Room, North Bennington, VT. A 
zoom link is not included for this meeting - so please join us in person in Room 1 
of the Depot. 

AGENDA 

1) Call Meeting to Order.

2) Query for public comment; revise agenda if needed.

3) Review and approve previous minutes from the April 18, 2023 meeting.

4) 6 Prospect Street - Applicant Seeks Waiver to:

Section 13.9.a. iii of the Village's Zoning By-laws requesting a waiver to
the side yard setback requirement for the construction of a roof struture
over an entrance and for a wooden walkway structure connecting this
entrance to the other side entrance into the home.

5) Adjournment.

This hearing is warned in accordance with Section 4464 of the Vermont Planning 
and Development Act (24 VS.A. Chapter 117). Please be advised that 
participation in this proceeding is a prerequisite to the right to take any 
subsequent appeal. All Village Zoning By-laws may be viewed at 
villagenorthbennington.org. 

To be posted and published Thursday, May 4, 2023 by Ron Hachey - Zoning 

Administrator 



North Bennington Vermont

Development Review Board

Findings of Fact and Decision

Property Owner: Jeannie Jenkins

Applicant: Jeannie Jenkins

Address: 6 Prospect Street

North Bennington, Vermont 05257

Location of Property: 6 Prospect Street North Bennington, Vermont

Parcel ID# 14-50-59 Zoning District: VR 20

Date of Hearing: May 16, 2023

Findings

This proceeding involved review of an application for a waiver, dated April 2023; a public
hearing of the Development Review Board makes the following findings:

1. The applicant seeks a waiver to the side yard setback requirement for the construction of a
roof structure over an entrance and for a wooden walkway structure connecting this entrance to
the other side entrance into the home.

2. The property is located within the village residential VR20 district.

3. Per Bylaw section 13.9, a. Requests for waivers of setback requirements are considered by
the Development Review Board. The purpose of waivers is to allow for minor additions to a
principal or accessory structure that would not be counter to the purpose of this Bylaw or the
Village Plan, but which might not meet the standards for the granting of a variance. A waiver
may be granted only to reduce dimensional requirements as provided below, and compliance
with all other requirements of this Bylaw is required. The Development Review Board may grant
a waiver provided all of the following conditions are satisfied:

i. The proposal is for an addition to an existing principal or accessory structure and said
addition does not increase the footprint of the structure by more than 5 percent, provided that
the addition shall not increase the building footprint by more than 200 square feet. ….. The
proposed project area is approximately 150 SF (which includes the small enclosed exterior
storage closet on the platform).



ii. The addition is the minimum size that is necessary for it to serve its intended function. …..
The proposed design is the minimum size needed to allow for a person in a wheelchair to
navigate the proposed walkway.

iii. The addition is specifically intended to improve access for disabled persons, or to improve
fire safety, or for a porch, deck, entryway, stairway, similar structure, or other minor addition to
an existing building. ….. The owners request to construct this walkway is to provide a second
accessible means of escape from the residence in the event of an emergency.

Conclusion and Decision

Based upon these findings and subject to the conditions set forth below, the Development
Review Board finds that the proposed side yard setback requirement for the construction of a
roof structure over an entrance and for a wooden walkway structure connecting this entrance to
the other side entrance into the home constitutes an allowable waiver under section 13.9 of the
Zoning Bylaw.

Permit applicant Jeannie Jenkins is hereby granted an APPROVAL for a Waiver to side
yard setback.

As conditioned, the structure meets the requirements of a permitted Waiver in that it will also
conform with other provisions on plans, ordinances, regulations, and bylaws of the Village,
whether expressly implied or not.

The Development Review Board approves the application subject to the following additional
conditions:

1. None

After a discussion, a motion was made to approve the application, as proposed, for a waiver
under Bylaw Section 13.9 to the applicant for a building permit submitted by Jeannie Jenkins
for construction of a roof structure over an entrance with a small enclosed exterior storage
closet and for a wooden walkway structure connecting this entrance to the other side entrance
into the home.

The vote was 5 to 0.

Chris Damon, Chair On behalf of the Development Review Board Date

NOTICE: An interested person who has participated in the proceeding(s) before the
Development Review Board may appeal this decision to the Vermont Environmental Court.
Such appeal must be taken within 30 days if the date of this decision, pursuant to 24 V.S.A.
4471 and Rule 5(b) of the Vermont Rules for Environmental Court Proceedings.














	DRBMeetingMinutesMay162023_final
	DRB051623attachments
	DRBAGENDAMay162023
	DRBFindingsOfFact_DecisionMay162023
	DRBLttrToDRB1of6May162023
	DRBLttrToDRB2of6May162023.jpeg
	DRBLttrToDRB3of6May162023.jpeg.jpeg
	DRBLttrToDRB4of6May162023.jpeg
	DRBLttrToDRB5of6May162023.jpeg.jpeg
	DRBLttrToDRB6of6May162023.jpeg


